Electrical Systems Engineering Services II (ESES II)

Solicitation Number NNG11375927R

Final RFP Questions - Set 2


GENERAL 
1. To provide a better services and manufacturing solution to the RFP requirements, will the government consider providing a seven-day extension to the current submission date for proposals?
ANSWER:  The Government declines to extend the proposal submission date.
COVER LETTER/SF33

2. The only place where the NAICS Code and associated size standard are specified is within the Cover Letter. Usually, the government incorporates this type of information within the body of the actual RFP, generally in either Section K or Section L. Will the RFP be modified to insert this into the RFP?

ANSWER: The SF-33 will be revised to reflect the proposal submission requirements stated in the cover letter.

SECTIONS B - K

3. Section K.1(a)(1): The only place where the NAICS Code and associated size standard are specified is within the Cover Letter. Usually, the government incorporates this type of information within the body of the actual RFP, generally in either Section K or Section L. Will the RFP be modified to insert this into the RFP?

ANSWER:  Section K.1(a)(1) will be revised to identify the NAICS code specified in the Cover Letter.

4. Sections G.11 and L.11: Paragraph G.11 indicates that government property will be provided and named in each task order issued under the ESES II contract. However, paragraph L.11 indicates ‘N/A’ with respect to a list of available government property. Please clarify whether or not the ESES II staff working on-site at GSFC will be provided government equipment and tools sufficient to perform their ESES II task order work.
ANSWER: The property and services identified in Section G.11.c will be provided, as available, for use on-site. If additional property is to be provided for the performance of any given task order, it will be specified in the task order document.  Given the IDIQ nature of this contract it is not possible to specify the property that may be required and available for future task orders.  Consequently, it is not possible for the Government to complete Section L.11 at this time.
5. Section L.15(c)7: This paragraph requires copies of salary surveys utilized to develop direct labor cost.  The actual printed results from our survey company are covered by copyright.  Will the Government allow offerors to summarize the survey data utilized, including the name, date, geography, survey labor categories, survey percentiles, and survey salaries?  A copy of the actual printed survey results would be maintained onsite for review by any auditor if required.
ANSWER: Yes, the Government will allow offerors to summarize data utilized, including the name, date, geography, survey labor categories, survey percentiles, and survey salaries.  An amendment to the RFP will be issued to make this change.
6. L.14(a)2; L.16.3 Subfactor B; L.18a: Definition of Significant Subcontractor for Mission Suitability Volume. Section L.14 defines significant subcontractors for cost proposal purposes as “any subcontract that is likely to exceed 5% of the Government Pricing Model (GPM). Section L.18 defines a proposed significant subcontractor for this procurement “as any proposed subcontractor that is estimated to meet/exceed an average annual cost/fee of $3M.” Offerors are further instructed to note that the definition of significant subcontractor for the past performance evaluation may be different than for the cost evaluation. Which definition should be applied when responding to the requirements in the Mission Suitability Volume that limit our response to the prime and significant subcontractors, such as in the Corporate Resources and Exhibit 5 instructions?
ANSWER:  The definition of significant subcontractor specified in Section L.18 is only applicable to past performance evaluation.  Section L.18a of the RFP will be amended to state: “Offerors are further instructed to note that the definition of significant subcontractor for the past performance evaluation may be different than for the Mission Suitability and Cost factor evaluations.”
7. Section L.16.3 Subfactor B: Is Exhibit 5 to be duplicated as part of the Mission Suitability Volume and as part of the Cost Volume, or can Exhibit 5 be included in the Cost Volume with a pointer to its location included in the Mission Suitability Volume, similar to the treatment of the Fringe Benefits Exhibits that are included only in the Cost Volume and which are cross-referenced in the Total Compensation Plan?
ANSWER: Yes, Exhibit 5 may be included only in the Cost Volume and referenced in the Mission Suitability Volume.
8. L.16.3 Subfactor B- Software Design & Analysis Tools: 
a. The final RFP included a new requirement to “Describe all software design and analysis tools that will be available for work to be performed under the contract.” Is this set of tools expected to be made available only at the off-site facility, or are the tools expected to be made available also on-site?

ANSWER:  Offerors may stipulate any restrictions as to where their tools may be made available.
b. The final RFP included a new requirement to “Describe all software design and analysis tools that will be available for work to be performed under the contract.” We want to be compatible with the work performed on-site in terms of these tools. While we appreciate the Engineering Design Tools listing provided in the ESES II procurement library, it is not clear whether or not it is comprehensive. In order to provide a level playing field and a consistent level of response from all bidders, we suggest that the government provide a comprehensive list of known tools in use on site. Alternatively, can the government provide a plug number for these software design and analysis tools licenses?
ANSWER: The listing of software tools posted to the ESES II library is a representative cross-section of the typical tools used at GSFC to carry out the kind of work cited in the SOW.  Its purpose was not intended to be a comprehensive listing of all the tool types used, expected to be used in the future, or to be made available to the vendor. The requirement is for the offeror to describe to the Government its available relevant, corporate resources that could be applied to work cited in the SOW.  
c. Has the ESES contract been granted use of software design and analysis tools listed in the Engineering Design Tools listing in the procurement library, and are these licensed to the current contractor? If so, will the license transfer to the ESES II contractor?
ANSWER:  The engineering design tools listed in the ESES II procurement library are licensed to GSFC and may be used as needed by contractor staff subject to availability as specified in the task order.
9. L.16.3 Subfactor B/Phase-in Plan: The RFP requires offerors to present a detailed plan sufficient to ensure continuity and a smooth transition during the 30-day phase-in period. Q&A Set #3, in its response to Q&A #19, clarifies that “The five year ordering period is inclusive of the 30-day phase-in to be accomplished through the issuance of a task order under the contract. The GPM should be viewed as pricing for the technical work to be done within the first 12 month period (which includes the 30-day phase-in).” Will the phase-in task order be the only task order issued during the first month of the contract?
ANSWER: See Final RFP Questions – Set 1, Question 8.
10. L.16.3 Subfactor B; Section M.3: Section L requires submission of Exhibit 5. However, Section M provides no indication of how Exhibit 5 is going to be evaluated since it does not mention Exhibit 5. How will the contents of Exhibit 5 be evaluated?
ANSWER: The RFP will be amended to clarify that the contents of Exhibit 5 will be evaluated in conjunction with the evaluation of the staffing plan as part of the Mission Suitability evaluation. 
11. Enclosure A; Exhibit 15: The final RFP inserted a new position description into Exhibit 15. This is for a Manufacturing Manager. However, we see no corresponding insertion into the Incumbent Labor Rates table in Enclosure A. Will the government be supplying a composite labor rate for this position in Enclosure A?
ANSWER: See Final RFP Questions Set 1, Question 10.

12. Exhibit 15: Position Description Number 40 is titled “Senior Electrical Power Engineer”. However, inside the body of the description, it consistently refers to the position as the “Sr. Electrical Power Engineer II.” Is this a Level I or a Level II position?

ANSWER: The body of the position description for this labor category will be revised to remove the Level II designation.
13. Exhibit 14, RTO #1: “Answers from the Government about RTO-1: 
a. From DRFP Questions Part 2: What is the anticipated date for the QRS Project PDR?
GVT ANSWER: November 2013. This will be updated in the RTO.

b. From DRFP Questions Part 4:
RTO 1 Question: The Government uses the word "prepare" to define RTO-1 tasks 1 (Technology Risk Mitigation Plan) and 3 (VLT Backup Plan), but the word "complete" to define task 2 (Trade Evaluation/Analysis Plan). This difference in wording can be interpreted in 3 different ways:
 1. As a synonym for "prepare";
2. As implying that a draft of the Trade Evaluation/Analysis Plan exists that is to be finalized by the contractor; or
3. As implying that the work defined by a Trade Evaluation/Analysis Plan is to be performed under the task and the resulting reports attached to the Trade Evaluation and Analysis Plan as appendices.
            
What is the Government's intention for the word "complete"?
GVT ANSWER:  After evaluating the question, tasks 1 and 2 should be “complete”, and task 3 should be “prepare”.  This intent of the word “complete” is to emphasize that more than the generation of the document is required, as in the third definition above.   These changes will be made in the final RFP.

FOLLOW-UP QUESTION: 
This is a major change in the RTO, has a significant impact on the work performed to date, and makes the planned 30 day response cycle appear more daunting than before because it implies additional, as yet unknown, deliverables. The RTO as written defines four deliverables, i.e., the VLT Technology Risk Mitigation Plan, the VLT Backup Plan (Draft), the VLT Trade Evaluations/Analyses Plan, and the VLT Backup Plan (Final). 
Please provide a detailed list of the additional deliverables (e.g., analysis results, trade study results) and due dates immediately so that we can begin addressing them.”

ANSWER:  All the deliverables, along with background information and description of tasks, are included in the released RTO attachment.  There are no additional deliverables required above and beyond what was included in the original draft RTO for RTO-1.  As stated in the Instructions to the Offeror, the Government is not requesting the offeror to actually to prepare or complete the representative deliverables as part of their RFP submittal, but rather provide their plan, to include staffing, schedules, cost, as well as narrative on their technical management approach, risks, and insight in implementing such a representative task order as described.  The start date is fictitiously set in the future with the stated period of performance and deliverable due dates, in preparation of the PDR in November 2013.
